
www.mineralspringsnc.com 
Page 1  

Town of Mineral Springs  
Mineral Springs Town Hall 

3506 Potter Road S ~ Mineral Springs 
Mineral Springs Town Council 

Regular Meeting  
May 9, 2024 ~ 7:30 P.M. 

AGENDA 
 

  
1. Opening  

 

The meeting will be called to order, an invocation will be delivered, and the Pledge of 
Allegiance will be recited.    
 

2. Public Comments 
 

The town council will hear comments from members of the public on any matters of interest 
to them during this ten-minute period.  
 

3. Consent Agenda – Action Item 
 

A. Approval of the April 11, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 
B. Acceptance of the March 2024 Union County Tax Report  
C. Acceptance of the March 2024 Finance Report 
 

4. Discussion and Consideration of Proceeding with or Indefinitely Tabling a 
Nuisance Ordinance – Action Item 

 

The council will discuss and consider whether to proceed with a nuisance ordinance or to 
table it indefinitely based on budgetary concerns. 
 

5. Consideration of the 2024-2025 Budget and Calling for a Public Hearing – Action 
Item 

 

Mayor Becker will present the council with the 2024-2025 proposed budget and the council 
will consider calling for a Public Hearing on June 13, 2024 for the 2024-2025 budget.   
 

6. Announcement of the Charlotte Regional Transportation Planning 
Organization (CRTPO) Presentation     

Mayor Becker will announce the details of the CRTPO 101 Presentation, which will be held 
at Wesley Chapel. 
 

7. Announcement of Proposed Small Intersection Improvements   
 

Mayor Becker will announce the details of the upcoming changes to the Highway 75/Potter 
Road traffic light and the possible improvements to the Potter Road/Pleasant Grove Road 
intersection by the North Carolina Department of Transportation. 

 

8. Consideration of Authorizing the Purchase of Replacement Banners – Action Item 
 

 The council will consider authorizing the purchase of replacement banners downtown.  
 

9. Staff Updates    

 The staff will update the council on any developments that may affect the town.  
  
10. Other Business 

 

11. Adjournment 



 

April 11, 2024 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 25 Page | 63 

 

Draft Minutes of the  
Mineral Springs Town Council  

Public Legislative Hearings / Regular Meeting  
April 11, 2024 – 7:30 p.m.  

 
The Town Council of the Town of Mineral Springs, North Carolina, met in Public Legislative Hearings 
and Regular Session at the Mineral Springs Town Hall located at 3506 Potter Road S, Mineral Springs, 
North Carolina, at 7:30 p.m. on Thursday, April 11, 2024. 
 
Present: Mayor Frederick Becker III, Mayor Pro Tem Valerie Coffey, Councilman Jerry 

Countryman, Councilwoman Lundeen Cureton, and Councilman Jim Muller.  
 
Absent: Councilwoman Janet Critz and Councilwoman Bettylyn Krafft.   
 
Staff Present: Town Clerk/Zoning Administrator Vicky Brooks, Attorney Bobby Griffin, and 

Administrative Assistant/Deputy Town Clerk Sharelle Quick.  
 
Visitors: Wendy Burke, Jeff Carroll, Jeff Floyd, Matt Hubert, James Kelly, and John Maida. 
 
1. Opening 

With a quorum present at 7:31 p.m. on April 11, 2024, Mayor Becker called the regular meeting to 
order.  
 

 Councilman Countryman delivered the invocation. 

 Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Legislative Public Hearing – Proposed Map Amendment 

 Mayor Becker opened the legislative public hearing at 7:31 p.m. 

Zoning Administrator Vicky Brooks stated the legislative public hearing for the proposed map 
amendment was legally advertised as required by the General Statutes and the Mineral Springs 
Development Ordinance: a legal ad was posted in the Enquirer Journal for two consecutive weeks; 
it was posted on the town bulletin board: the property was posted; and the adjacent property owners 
were notified.   

Ms. Brooks explained the proposed map amendment application was submitted by Mr. John Maida, 
who was the potential buyer of the property.  Included with the application was a Certificate of 
Authorization signed by the authorized representatives of St. John Pentecostal Church.  The 
proposed map amendment is to rezone tax parcel #06-019-004A consisting of 0.3 acres located at 
6016 Waxhaw Highway from RA20 to General Business.  In advance of this hearing, Ms. Brooks 
explained she had only received one inquiry about the proposed rezoning; the property owner 
wanted to make sure it wasn’t her property being rezoned and she was assured that was not the 
case.  

Mr. John Maida explained he owned a piece of property that was where the church was behind him, 
and it seemed to be landlocked.  The piece of property that Mr. Maida owns has the church water 
line that crosses his property and Duke Energy just came through to replace the electric and had to 
leave an easement on the other side of the property.  Now both sides of his property have an 
easement.  It has also been found that the church septic tank was on his property.  Union County 
will not allow Mr. Maida to use the septic tank anymore, because the septic tank and the field is on 
another property.  Union County informed Mr. Maida that because the church property does not 
front on Highway 75, sewer could not be connected to it.  The only thing that can be done is to 
merge the two properties together, so that it has road frontage.  Otherwise, the church building will 
have to go away.  Mr. Maida plans to put a building up in front of the church to make everything 
blend to make it look right.  “Otherwise, we’re going to have split-zoning and we’re going to have 
residential behind it and GB in the front.” 



 

April 11, 2024 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 25 Page | 64 

 

There were no public comments. 

 Mayor Becker closed the legislative public hearing at 7:37 p.m. 

3. Legislative Public Hearing – Proposed Text Amendments 

Mayor Becker opened the legislative public hearing at 7:37 p.m. 

There were no public comments. 

Ms. Brooks stated the hearing was legally advertised according to General Statutes and Article 3 of 
the Mineral Springs Development Ordinance: a legal ad was posted in the Enquirer-Journal for two 
consecutive weeks and the bulletin board was posted. 

Ms. Brooks explained that there were three proposed text amendments in TA24-01. 

1) Article 4, Permitted Uses.  To amend the use of Manufactured Homes, Class A in R20.  
Currently, a Special Use Permit is required.  The RA20 zoning district does not require a 
Special Use Permit (it is a use by right).  There is very little difference between RA20 and 
R20; therefore, it does put an extra burden and expense on property owners who wish to 
have a Class A Manufactured Home. 

2) Article 4, Permitted Uses.  To amend Accessory Dwellings from a Special Use Permit to a 
by right in the RR zoning district.  Accessory Dwellings are allowed by right in the AR zoning 
district.  The difference between AR and RR is a half-acre, they are both large lots.  This is 
burdensome and expensive for the residents in the RR zoning district with little difference in 
the two zoning districts. 

3) Article 4, Section 4.4.1.C.  The planning board recommended deleting “C”.  “The tract must 
contain at least one acre for every livestock animal housed in such barn provided that if this 
density figure is exceeded as a result of birth, the offspring may remain for weaning purposes 
for a period of not to exceed six months.”  If the council approved of the deletion of “C”, “D” 
would become “C”, and “E” would become “D”.  The reasoning behind this proposed text 
amendment was that when the language was originally put in the town zoning ordinance 
back in 2002, the word “horse” was used instead of “livestock”.  The definition of “livestock” 
is vast.  It is “domesticated four legged mammals, including but not limited to cows, horses, 
sheep, goats, llama, swine, rabbits, and similar animals, anything greater than 15 pounds.”  
The language specifically speaks to livestock housed in a barn.  Ms. Brooks asked, “what if 
there is not barn;” it seemed like the limitation was on the number of livestock one could 
have would not apply.    

Mayor Becker closed the legislative public hearing at 7:42 p.m. 

4. Public Comments 

Jeff Carroll – 3304 Collins Road. 

Wendy Burke – 6426 Snow White Field Road. 

Jeff Floyd – 6426 Snow White Field Road. 

James Kelly – Town of Waxhaw. 

Matt Hubert – Town of Waxhaw. 

5. Consent Agenda – Action Item 

Councilwoman Coffey motioned to approve the consent agenda containing the March 14, 2024 
Special Meeting / Regular Meeting Minutes, the February 2024 Union County Tax Report, and the 
February 2024 Finance Report as presented, and Councilman Muller seconded.  The motion passed 
unanimously.  Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Cureton, and Muller.  Nays: None. 



 

April 11, 2024 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 25 Page | 65 

 

6. Presentation of the Audit Report   

Mayor Becker explained that Kendra [Gangal] could not make it tonight and that she has made it 
clear that she does not have to present.  The council has the audit report and the LGC signed off 
on it, so the council does not need Kendra to come, if the board is willing to not have her.  Mayor 
Becker noted that the council would be approving a new contract in a couple months for next year’s 
audit, so he will let Kendra know that the council did not have any questions, but if they do, they 
have her number.   

7. Consideration of a Proposed Map Amendment – Action Item  

Ms. Brooks explained that the application was in the agenda packet along with the planning board 
statement of consistency and reasonableness.  Ms. Brooks pointed out that she had prepared a 
Statement of Consistency and Inconsistency and Reasonableness for the map amendment and 
explained that it was both consistent and inconsistent.  It was consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan, but it was inconsistent with the future land use map.  If the council approved the map 
amendment, it would automatically change the future land use map.  

Councilman Jim Muller asked Ms. Brooks about the discrepancy in the parcel numbers found in the 
documentation.  Most documents referenced the parcel as 06-019-004A; however, the Certificate 
of Authorization signed by Melvin Torrence and Margretta Torrence Morrison referred to it as 06-
019-005A.  Councilman Muller asked if that was a typographical error or if it posed any issue. 

Ms. Brooks addressed Ms. Margretta Torrence Morrison who was at the meeting acknowledging 
the discrepancy in the parcel number provided on the signed authorization, offering to correct the 
error by updating the Certificate of Authorization with the correct parcel number, and seeking the 
confirmation from Ms. Morrison that she wished to proceed with the correction.  

Ms. Morrison confirmed. 

Mayor Becker stated that Ms. Morrison was on the record that the correct number is “4A”. 

Ms. Morrison confirmed that was correct. 

Mayor Becker clarified that the property under discussion was the one with the church on it to avoid 
any confusion regarding the specific piece of property being referenced and noted Ms. Morrison’s 
confirmation. 

Attorney Bobby Griffin advised that the record show that Ms. Morrison was made aware that there 
was an incorrect designation in the Certificate of Authorization that she and Melvin Torrence had 
signed, and that she wished to amend that to 06-019-004A rather than 06-019-005A in the signed 
letter to be consistent with the copy of the map that was presented with it and that it is the lot being 
referenced. 

Councilman Muller motioned to accept the parcel id number correction on the Certificate of 
Authorization from 06-019-005A to 06-019-004A and Councilman Countryman seconded.  Ayes: 
Coffey, Countryman, Cureton, and Muller.  Nays: None. 

Councilman Muller motioned to adopt Ordinance O-2023-08 to amend the zoning map of Mineral 
Springs and Councilman Countryman seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: Coffey, 
Countryman, Cureton, and Muller.  Nays: None. 

Ordinance-2023-08 is as follows: 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS AS 
ESTABLISHED BY THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE DATED JULY 12, 2019 

O-2023-08 
 

WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Planning Board has recommended to the Mineral Springs Town Council that Tax Parcel #06-019-
004A located at 6016 Waxhaw Highway be re-classified from RA20 to General Business (GB); and 



 

April 11, 2024 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 25 Page | 66 

 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NC General Statutes 160D, Article 6 and Article 3, Section 3.9 of the Mineral Springs Development 

Ordinance, the Mineral Springs Town Council may amend the Official Zoning Map after holding a legislative public hearing and after 
the Mineral Springs Planning Board has had the opportunity to review, comment, and make a recommendation to the Town Council 
regarding the map amendment as well as whether the same is consistent with any comprehensive plan that has been adopted and 
any other officially adopted plan that is applicable; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Planning Board reviewed the proposed map amendment at a regular meeting on February 27, 
2024, held in accordance with law; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Planning Board recommended in a vote of 6 to 0 on February 27, 2024, that the Mineral Springs 
Town Council amend the Official Zoning Map based on the Community Vision for the Future was to have more retail, businesses, and 
shopping as stated in the Mineral Springs Comprehensive Plan; and  
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with NC General Statute 160D-601 and the provisions set forth in Article 3, Section 3.9.1, Steps 5 and 
6 of the Mineral Springs Development Ordinance, the Town Council duly advertised and held a public legislative hearing to consider 
the proposed map amendment; and 
  

WHEREAS, after reviewing the written recommendation from the Mineral Springs Planning Board on the proposed map 
amendment, conducting a legislative public hearing on April 11, 2024, and careful review, the Town Council determines that: 
 

1. The map amendment to the Official Zoning Map identifies with the results of town survey conducted prior to the adoption of the 
Mineral Springs Comprehensive Plan, which indicated the community vision was to have more retail, businesses, and shopping 
in the future, which makes the map amendment consistent with the Mineral Springs Comprehensive Plan; and 

 
2. The map amendment to the Official Zoning Map has also been found to be inconsistent with the Mineral Springs Future Land Use 

Map shown in the Mineral Springs Comprehensive Plan; and 
 

3. The Town Council acknowledges the map amendment adopted has the effect of also amending the Future Land Use Map without 
an additional request or application for a plan amendment per NC General Statute 160D-605(a). 

 
4. The Town Council finds the map amendment to be reasonable because Tax Parcel #06-019-004A adjoins property that is currently 

zoned GB on the east side, and it abuts the railroad tracks on the north side.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Official Zoning Map established by the Mineral Springs Development Ordinance effective July 12, 2019, and as 
subsequently amended, is hereby amended to rezone Tax Parcel #06-019-004A consisting of 0.3 acre located at 6016 Waxhaw 
Highway, and more specifically shown on the attached Exhibit A, from RA20 zoning.  Said property shall now be zoned GB (General 
Business).  

 
Section 2. The Zoning Administrator for the Town of Mineral Springs is hereby authorized and directed to have said changes made 
upon the Official Zoning Map of the Town of Mineral Springs and to consequently to have said changes made upon the Future 
Land Use Map without further requests or applications for plan amendments; and 

 
Section 3. This map amendment to the Official Zoning Map of the Town of Mineral Springs is effective upon adoption. 

 
ADOPTED this 11th day of April, 2024. 
 
 
 

             
       Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:       
 
 
        
Vicky Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, CZO 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

April 11, 2024 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 25 Page | 67 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 

Councilwoman Coffey motioned to adopt the Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness for 
the Map Amendment and Councilman Muller seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: 
Coffey, Countryman, Cureton, and Muller.  Nays: None. 

The Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness is as follows: 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 
STATEMENT OF CONSISTENCY/INCONSISTENCY  

AND REASONABLENESS  
 

Mineral Springs Development Ordinance   
Map Amendment 

 
In reference to the proposed map amendment from RA20 to General Business (GB) to the property located at 6016 Waxhaw Highway 
on Tax Parcel #06-019-004A. 

The Mineral Springs Town Council hereby declares the proposed map amendment is “consistent” with the Mineral Springs 
Comprehensive Plan adopted May 12, 2022 based on: 
 

5. The Community Vision for the Future is to have more retail, businesses, and shopping. 
 
The Mineral Springs Town Council hereby declares that the proposed map amendment is “inconsistent” with the Mineral Springs Future 
Land Use Map, which calls for this property to be zoned Town Center (TC) in the future.  The Mineral Springs Town Council acknowledges 
that the Future Land Use Map will automatically be amended with the passage of the proposed map amendment. 
 
The Mineral Springs Town Council finds the proposed map amendment to be “reasonable” based on: 
 

1. The property is adjoined by GB and the railroad tracks.   
 
ADOPTED by the Mineral Springs Town Council on this the 11th day of April, 2024. 

              
 Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 

Attest: 

       
Vicky Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, CZO 

 



 

April 11, 2024 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 25 Page | 68 

 

8. Consideration of Proposed Text Amendments and Adoption of Ordinance-2023-06 – Action Item 

 Mayor Becker explained the proposed text amendments and the ordinance were in the agenda 
packet. 

Ms. Brooks added that the planning board’s Statement of Consistency was also in the agenda 
packet. 

Councilman Countryman motioned to adopt the ordinance amending the text of Article 4 of the 
Mineral Springs Development Ordinance (O-2023-06) and Councilwoman Coffey seconded.  The 
motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Cureton, and Muller.  Nays: None.  

Councilman Muller motioned to approve the Statement of Consistency for Mineral Springs 
Development Ordinance, Article 4 and Councilman Countryman seconded.  The motion passed 
unanimously.  Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Cureton, and Muller.  Nays: None.  

O-2023-06 is as follows: 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF ARTICLE 4 OF THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT 

ORDINANCE  
O-2023-06 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Mineral Springs maintains an ordinance concerning numerous development regulations; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NC General Statutes 160D-601; 160D-604, and Article 3, Section 3.10.1 of the Mineral Springs Development 
Ordinance, the Mineral Springs Town Council may amend its development regulations after holding a public hearing and after the Mineral 
Springs Planning Board has had the opportunity to review, comment, and make a recommendation to the Town Council regarding the 
amendment as well as whether the same is consistent with any comprehensive plan that has been adopted and any other officially 
adopted plan that is applicable; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Planning Board reviewed the proposed amendments at a regular meeting on February 27, 2024, held 
in accordance with law; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Planning Board recommended in a vote of 6 to 0 on February 27, 2024, that the Mineral Springs Town 
Council adopt the proposed amendments based on implementation of ongoing updates to the town’s development regulations and 
enhancing the quality of life in the Mineral Springs Comprehensive Plan; and  

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with NC General Statute 160D-601 and the provisions set forth in Article 3, Section 3.10.1 of the Mineral 
Springs Development Ordinance, the Town Council duly advertised and held a public hearing to consider the proposed amendments; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, after reviewing the written recommendation of the Mineral Springs Planning Board, the proposed amendments, conducting 
a legislative public hearing on April 11, 2024, and careful review, the Town Council determines that: 

 
1. The amendments to Article 4 identifies with the “Implementation” of the Mineral Springs Comprehensive Plan to have 

ongoing updates to the Town’s development regulations; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA THAT: 
 

Section 1. That this Town Council does hereby adopt the proposed amendments as outlined in TA-2024-01 attached hereto. 
 

Section 2. That if any section, subsection, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for any reason, held to be invalid, such 
decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance; and 

 
Section 3.  That all ordinances and clauses of ordinance in conflict herewith be and are hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict. 
 

Section 4. This ordinance is effective upon adoption. 
 

ADOPTED this 11th day of April, 2024. 
 

              
       Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:       
        
Vicky Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, CZO 
 
 
 



 

April 11, 2024 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 25 Page | 69 

 

 

 
 

9. Consideration of Adopting an Ordinance-2023-07 to Amend the Budget – Action Item 

 Mayor Becker explained it was near the end of the fiscal year and this was the first budget 
amendment.  Duke Power’s rate structure for streetlights is crazy; it just goes up constantly, so that 
budget category was under by $250.  An increase of $650 to Employee Overhead will come from 
Contingency to balance that.  An increase to Office of $18,000 for the major maintenance 
(landscaping, driveway sealcoating) will come from Capital.  The total budget amendment is 
$18,900. 

Councilman Countryman motioned to approve the Ordinance amending the budget of the Town of 
Mineral Springs for the fiscal year 2023-2024 (O-2023-07) and Councilwoman Coffey seconded. 
The motion passed unanimously.   Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Cureton, and Muller.  Nays: None. 

O-2023-07 is as follows:  

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET OF  
THE TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS  
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 

O-2023-07 
 
 WHEREAS, NC G.S. 159-15 authorizes a municipal governing board to amend the annual budget ordinance at any time after the 

ordinance’s adoption; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Town of Mineral Springs, North Carolina, the following: 
 
 SECTION  1.  Appropriations and Amounts. Amendment #2023-01: 
 

INCREASE DECREASE
Street Lighting $250 Contingency $900
Employee Overhead $650 Capital $18,000
Office $18,000
 
Total $18,900 Total $18,900

 
 SECTION 2.  Effective Date. This ordinance is effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED this 11th day of April, 2024.  Witness my hand and official seal: 
 

___________________________________ 
Frederick Becker III, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Vicky A. Brooks, Clerk 

 

 TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE                              
TA-2024-01

Article Section # Subsection # Current Language Amendment 
4 Permitted 

Uses 
Manufactured homes, 
Class A (one unit per 
lot) - R20 

S P 

4 Permitted 
Uses 

Accessory dwellings – 
RR 

S P 

4 4.4.1.1 C The tract must contain at least one (1) 
acre for every livestock animal housed 
in such barn, provided that if this density 
figure is exceeded as a result of birth, the 
offspring may remain for weaning 
purposes for a period not to exceed six 
(6) months. 

Delete Section 4.4.1.1 (C) 
“D” will become “C” 
“E” will become “D” 



 

April 11, 2024 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 25 Page | 70 

 

10. Consideration of Approving the Proposed Downtown Sidewalk Plan – Action Item 

Mayor Becker mentioned that he had touched on the sidewalk plan with the council previously.  The 
sidewalk plan will help the town get started downtown in critical areas centered at the crossroads, 
with as little new construction put in as possible that would be ripped out for the intersection 
improvements when those occur (could be as soon as five years or it may not).  Mayor Becker 
explained he had given the council interim reports on the sidewalk plan, but this was the final report 
by the Charlotte Regional Transportation Planning Organization (CRTPO) folks and the engineer. 

The sidewalk plan is a mile and a half or so.  The proposals are shown in yellow on the map, which 
will allow the town to have sidewalks from Gordon’s Gas and Grill up past the Fire Department. 
Some of those sidewalks are in already place and then some are new construction Mr. Maida will 
be doing on the corner where Hal Rape’s buildings used to be.  There will be some additional curb 
cuts and ramps to enable painted crosswalks to make everything accessible.  There are sidewalks 
in front of Spiro’s Shopping Center already and at the Post Office on the other side.  The south side 
of 75 will be roughly from where the three shops (the ones facing sideways) are, going along that 
way set back from the road, because the property owner is happy to do that in an effort to make 
sure those are set back farther, because some of that road will be widened for the intersection 
improvements.  The same thing will be with Circle K, cutting through their islands.  The hope is to 
go down Potter Road to the south to intersect the sidewalk at town hall.  There is one leg crossing 
the railroad tracks by Farley’s Pizza to the north; according to CRTPO and the engineer, CSX does 
not like it touching their tracks at all, but asphalt, if it is considered a shoulder widening, CSX will 
usually work on something as small as that where we can get the track crossed to get up to Eubanks 
Street to begin the next phase of Potter Road. 

The estimated cost is $1,700,000 for five separate phases; they could all be done separately, or 
they could all be done at once.  If the sidewalk plan is adopted, the town will have the opportunity 
in October to apply for a grant with the “call for projects with CRTPO.”  These are called Strategic 
Transportation Block Grant Direct Attributable (STBG-DA), which are federal grants, and are very 
competitive.  The “bike-ped ones” come out of a different pot from the “road ones”, and they require 
a minimum 20% match.  If the town put up a 25 or 30% match, they would stand a far better chance 
of receiving the grant.  This would enable the town to do the sidewalks all at once with a $400,000 
match; “it might be able to get a little bit of a cut from NCDOT, one of their players who said they 
could put something in it with some of their bike ped allocations.”  Adopting the sidewalk plan opens 
the town up to being able to apply for the grant.   

Councilwoman Coffey motioned to approve the sidewalk plan as submitted and Councilman Muller 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Cureton, and Muller.  
Nays: None. 

Mayor Becker announced he would be talking to the grant writing people to see if that could be 
moved forward. 

11. Consideration of Approving the Resolution-2024-01 – Action Item  

Mayor Becker explained R-2024-01 was a clarification on the CRTPO CTP amendment for the 
Waxhaw Parkway on the southeast leg that goes through Mineral Springs and the leg that is south 
of Mineral Springs. 

Mayor Becker presented the history of the Waxhaw Parkway/Waxhaw Bypass/Waxhaw 
Thoroughfare; it has gone by different names over the years, and it has changed and moved around.  
This has made it tough on people who live in sight of that project. 

The Po werPoint presentation slides included: 

1) A 2002 recorded plat showing the first 10 lots of Waxhaw Meadows Plantation with the 
approximate 1997 location of the “Waxhaw Thoroughfare.”  



 

April 11, 2024 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 25 Page | 71 

 

2) A 2011 Town of Waxhaw study showing a new route of the Waxhaw Parkway 2000 feet east of 
the 1997 location.  The study was done without anybody knowing about it at the time. 

3) Homes were built on the east side of Waxhaw Meadows Plantation to avoid the 1997 route and 
then the 2011 route ran through several of those developed properties.  

4) At a 2016 Waxhaw Board of Commissioners meeting, they adopted the new eastern route of 
the Waxhaw Parkway. 

5) The new eastern route through developed properties was adopted by the Waxhaw Board of 
Commissioners with little public awareness; Waxhaw Meadows Plantation residents did not 
know about the new route.  

6) An excerpt from the March 8, 2016 Town of Waxhaw minutes showed an item that stated “to 
serve a different purpose”, but did not explain what the “different purpose” was or why the route 
was changed. 

7) Subdivision residents and the Mineral Springs Mayor tried to get the route changed back to its 
former location on the CTP, but Waxhaw and Union County refused.  Acting in good faith, 
residents began to build on the western edge of the subdivision since they had been assured 
that the route would not be changed.  

8) Another study of the alignment began in 2022 and all jurisdictions initially agreed on a new 
western route that was close to what Mineral Springs had asked for in 2018; however, when 
Mineral Springs learned that residents had built houses on the west side of Waxhaw Meadows 
Plantation in response to the refusal to move the route in 2018, the town could not support the 
new route.  

9) Meanwhile, a grade separation west of Waxhaw near Helms Road had been “fast-tracked” in 
2018 as a Rail Project; that project is currently underway decades sooner than a highway project 
would be and will soon provide a bypass around the NC16/NC75 intersection without disrupting 
an established neighborhood.  

Mayor Becker wrapped up his PowerPoint presentation and explained that the proposed resolution 
before the council was simply to restate what had already been adopted.  Mayor Becker noted that 
he had spoken with Mr. Bjorn Hanson of Union County to tell him, “We’ll clarify, we oppose that 
amendment, because we were not in favor of it, but we would really like CRTPO to be planning on 
reevaluating that leg of the parkway, rather than keeping it on the CTP as is.” 

Mayor Becker noted that he had brought up the western Helms Road overpass as an example of 
some of the alternatives that are “before us that could really help everybody if we focus more on 
those and work together and Mineral Springs to CRTPO and the TCC to really look favorably with 
their project review committee on getting that last leg funded for Waxhaw to join, so that when the 
overpass and the loop around are done, maybe that connection to 16 up by the post office is done 
too, and we actually have a way to at least get some of the traffic out.  If a truck has to turn right to 
go left and has to go an extra mile, truckers are used to that.  I think they’d rather go that extra mile 
than get hung up on the track and be stuck there for six hours waiting for Secrest to come and get 
them out and worry about whether the train is going to come.”  

 Councilwoman Coffey motioned to adopt the R-2024-01 clarifying the earlier resolution from 
September and Councilwoman Cureton seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: Coffey, 
Countryman, Cureton, and Muller.  Nays: None. 

The resolution is as follows:  

 
 



 

April 11, 2024 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 25 Page | 72 

 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
 

RESOLUTION TO CLARIFY THE POSITION OF MINERAL SPRINGS ON A 
PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE  

TRANSPORTATION PLAN INVOLVING THE WAXHAW PARKWAY  

R-2024-01 

 

WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Town Council adopted Resolution R-2023-03 on September 14, 2023 expressing its non-endorsement 
of a proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) to be considered by the Charlotte Regional Transportation 
Planning Organization (CRTPO) altering the alignments of the routes of the northeastern and southern legs of the proposed Waxhaw 
Parkway; and 

WHEREAS, R-2023-03 also requested that CRTPO and NCDOT consider eliminating the northeastern and southern legs of the proposed 
Waxhaw Parkway and seek alternate mobility solutions for the region that would be less likely to promote unsustainable new development 
and less disruptive to Mineral Springs residents and property owners; and 

WHEREAS, the findings expressed in R-2023-03 are hereby restated in their entirety in this resolution; and 

WHEREAS, both the current and new alignments of the northeastern leg of the proposed Waxhaw Parkway cut through and severely 
damage the character, environmental protection goals, and desirability of a unique and well-established conservation-based 
neighborhood located in the town of Mineral Springs formerly known as Waxhaw Meadows Plantation and now known as The Meadows 
at Mineral Springs; and 

WHEREAS, CRTPO staff has offered to facilitate a discussion between Union County, the town of Waxhaw, and the town of Mineral 
Springs in an effort to arrive at a more viable alternative to the northeastern and southern legs of the proposed Waxhaw Parkway; and 

WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Town Council wishes to clarify its position on the proposed new alignment of the Waxhaw parkway 
preparatory to any further CRTPO-facilitated discussion;  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Mineral Springs Town Council does not endorse the proposed new alignment for the 
northeastern and southern legs of the Waxhaw Parkway; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mineral Springs Town Council requests that CRTPO and NCDOT consider eliminating the 
northeastern and southern legs of the Waxhaw Parkway from the Comprehensive Transportation Plan and instead seek alternate mobility 
solutions for the region including targeted improvement of existing roads, modification of traffic flow patterns including the possible 
introduction of one-way streets, and encouraging the dispersal of traffic over a more widespread network of existing roads rather than 
constructing a completely new highway through an existing Mineral Springs neighborhood the conservation values of which are 
irreplaceable; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mineral Springs Town Council hereby expresses its willingness to participate in a CRTPO-
facilitated discussion and review of alternatives to the proposed Waxhaw Parkway. 

Adopted this 11th day of April, 2024.  

      ___________________________________ 
      Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
_____________________________ 
Vicky A. Brooks, Town Clerk 

 

12. FY2024-2025 Budget: Preliminary Departmental Appropriations – Action Item 

Mayor Becker explained this was the beginning of the budget process.  There are certain things that 
are not happening this upcoming year, such as this is not an election year, the council already added 
some maintenance expenses for this year, which the town will have again next year.  The bottom 
line is that even with the staff salary increases, which are to benchmark with the League of 
Municipalities figure (the method the council suggested last year), the operating plan budget is 
$3,000 less than last year.  The preliminary departmental appropriations worksheet does not include 
any revenues (that will come later), but the town is talking about an estimated $366,679 operating 
budget for 2024-2025 for the entirety, not including capital, that would simply be the operating 
budget.  

Mayor Becker stated the council had the chance to look at the spreadsheet and a little bit of a 
summary.  At this stage, the council could ask Mayor Becker questions, but when it came to adopting 
the budget, the council will need to decide whether the salary figures for the staff are appropriate, 
because Mayor Becker did like to work those in because it affected the budgeting for the benefits 
and workers comp, etcetera.  The council will decide whether all proposed amendments should be 
included and decide whether there are any they would like to increase or decrease before the full 
budget gets submitted next month.   



 

April 11, 2024 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 25 Page | 73 

 

Councilman Countryman motioned that Mayor Becker just go ahead and use the figures he provided 
the council and develop a budget for 24-25 and Councilwoman Coffey seconded.  The motion 
passed unanimously.  Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Cureton, and Muller.  Nays: None. 

13. Staff Updates 

 There were no staff updates.   

14. Other Business 

There was no other business. 

15. Adjournment – Action Item 

 At 8:42 p.m. Councilwoman Coffey motioned to adjourn the meeting and Councilman Muller 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Cureton, and Muller.  
Nays: None. 

 The next regular meeting will be on Thursday, May 9, 2024 at 7:30 p.m. at the Mineral Springs Town 
Hall.  

Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 

             
  Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk  Frederick Becker, Mayor    



msncmayor@yahoo.com
Rectangle

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Agenda Item

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
#3B

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
5/9/2024

























































 

  

 

 

MEMO 
 

To: Town Council 
From: Vicky Brooks 
Date: May 2, 2024 
Re: Agenda Item 4  Discussion and Consideration of Proceeding with or Indefinitely Tabling   
                                               a Nuisance Ordinance 
 
On March 14, 2024, the Mineral Springs Town Council held a special meeting to review a nuisance 
ordinance.  At the conclusion of that meeting, the council directed staff to work on scheduling some 
work with N-Focus as the next step of the review process. 
 
Patti Rader of N-Focus was contacted to inquire about the process of scheduling a representative to 
come to discuss the nuisance ordinance with the council and what the fees were to have N-Focus 
handle the code enforcement if the council opted to adopt the nuisance ordinance. 
 
Ms. Rader copied Mr. John Ganus on our emails, because he would be the N-Focus representative 
handling the code enforcement for Mineral Springs.   
 
The fee to have Mr. John Ganus come to a council meeting to discuss the nuisance ordinance with 
the council is:  Time to/from and during the work session would be charged at the rate of $135 per 
hour.  
 
If the council adopts a nuisance ordinance the fee options are: 
 
Examples for the period of 7/1/24 – 6/30/25 
 

1. Continuing Services: 
 
1-day / week = $37,440 
 
2-days / month = $17,280 
 
NO charge for commuting hours. 

 
2. On-Call Hourly: 
 

$134 / hour 
 
Commuting hours are subject to the hourly rate.  

 
The council will need to consider the budgetary needs it will take to enforce a nuisance ordinance and 
whether the limited number of complaints the town receives regarding nuisances that cannot be 
handled by the Mineral Springs Development Ordinance.  

Town of Mineral Springs  
Town Clerk / Zoning Administrator 
Vicky Brooks 
P O Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC  28108 
704-289-5331 
704-243-1705 FAX 
msvickybrooks@aol.com 
www.mineralspringsnc.com 
 

















































 

MEMO 

 

 

To:  Mineral Springs Town Council 

From:  Rick Becker 

Date:  May 2, 2024 

Subject: NCDOT Intersection Projects: Potter/Pleasant Grove plus Protected Left Turns at 

Potter/NC-75 

 

Back in July of 2021, I had initiated discussions with NCDOT Division 10 staff about addressing some 
small intersection projects in Mineral Springs: realignment and reconfiguration of the intersection of 
Pleasant Grove Road and Potter Road, and installation of protected left turn signals at the intersection of 
Potter Road and NC Highway 75.  
 
Deputy Division 10 Engineer Sean Epperson did some study and proposed slight changes in the 
geometry of the Pleasant Grove/Potter intersection including reconfiguring the pavement to meet at 
more of a 90 degree angle and converting to an all-way stop at an estimated cost of $88,000. There was 
a possibility that NCDOT could apply for internal “Spot Safety” funding for this project. As for the 
Highway 75 traffic signal, all simulations that the NCDOT team ran concluded that none of the possible 
signal changes (at a proposed cost to the town of $10,000) would improve the functionality of the 
intersection, so that project was abandoned. 
 
I decided in March 2024 to revisit both of these projects with Mr. Epperson. The news has been much 
better this time! 
 
First, on the Pleasant Grove/Potter intersection the Division has reworked the design and proposed 
doing most of the work in-house to bring the cost down. Also, with the lower cost the project scored a 
B/C (Benefit/Cost ratio) of 17, which put it in a position to be competitive for Spot Safety finding. That 
project has been submitted and we should hear in the next few weeks whether or not it will be funded 
this cycle. The cycles are quarterly, and it can be resubmitted if it doesn’t qualify for funding this time. 
 
Second, the Division ran new simulations using updated traffic counts and “smarter” signal controllers 
and concluded that installing protected-left arrows on both NC-75 approaches could improve 
performance during both morning and afternoon rush hours. Unfortunately, the study also determined 
that, while there are delays for northbound Potter Road left-turning traffic at some times of the day, 
attempting to give that phase a protected left arrow might lead to further slowdowns of southbound 
traffic that could create safety conflicts with the railroad crossing. The decision was not to make any 
changes to the Potter Road-facing signals. 
 
But the best news is that Mr. Epperson informed me that NCDOT would cover all costs of the signal 
modification and that the town would pay ZERO. The whole thing from design to completion should 
take 4 to 6 months.  
 
I would like to extend our gratitude to the NCDOT division 10 staff for their assistance on these 
projects!   

Agenda Item 

# ___ 
  5/9/2024 



Epperson, Sean M  

From:Sean Epperson 

To:Mayor Rick Becker,Gardner, Zachary L 

Cc:Vicky Brooks,Ghitea, Theo 

Wed, Mar 13 at 7:46 AM 

Mayor Becker, 
  
I am looping our new Division Traffic Engineer, Zach Gardner, on this email. My 
comments are below in red.  
  
Sean Epperson, PE 
Deputy Division Engineer 
NCDOT 
Division 10 
  
716 W. Main St 
Albemarle, NC 28001 
  
From: Mayor Rick Becker <msncmayor@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Monday, March 11, 2024 1:25 PM 
To: Epperson, Sean M; Ghitea, Theo  
Cc: Vicky Brooks <msvickybrooks@aol.com> 
Subject: [External] Mineral Springs small intersection projects 
  
Hello Sean and Theo, 
 
I mentioned these during our sidewalk meeting but I promised to follow up.  
 
1) Potter Rd (SR1162) and Pleasant Grove Rd (SR1327): this was analyzed for some pavement 
removal and geometry modification with possible all-way stop addition, estimated cost $80,000. It 
was supposed to be submitted as a Spot Safety intersection project but Sean and/or Theo 
weren't sure why it didn't seem to have gone any further. I just got a call from a resident whose 
back yard backs up to that intersection asking what the status of any improvements was since 
there was another crash this weekend. This intersection has a lot of crashes, low- to moderate-
severity, few or no fatalities. Is this project worthy of another look?  Yes.  We recently relooked at 
it and reevaluated the over cost of the project.  We determined that if we do the work in house we 
can reduce overall cost of the project a lot.  We are waiting to hear on what the new B/C will be.  I 
suspect it will be high enough to compete for Spot Safety funds and have a decent shot at getting 
funded.  If I am wrong and it does not then we are going to look at some other funding sources.  
 
2) "Lead light" left turn arrows at Potter Rd (SR1111) and NC Hwy 75: This one was studied for a 
short-duration protected left turn signal during high-traffic times of day; Tony Tagliaferri ran some 
simulations and we concluded that such a signal change would probably not be effective and 
might even make movement worse in some cases. The cost to install would be $10,000 which the 
town would pay. 
 
Because the full-scale improvement of that intersection is definitely many years out, could we 



reavaluate this "stop-gap" measure? Is the Division willing to install the arrows if the town pays for 
it even if the analysis is inconclusive? If the Mineral Springs Town Council is willing to pay the 
$10,000 to try this at our own risk, would NCDOT give it a try? I will put it before Council again if 
you are willing to try it at our expense.   Zach – Please relook at whether adding a protected 
phase to one or more approaches will help reduce congestion.  We may want to get updated 
counts.  

  

Mayor Rick Becker  

From:msncmayor@yahoo.com 

To:Gardner, Zachary L,Epperson, Sean M 

Cc:Vicky Brooks,Ghitea, Theo 

Wed, Mar 13 at 8:26 AM 

Sean, 
 
As always, thank you for your quick response and valuable information. Please let me know if i 
can be of any assistance. 

-Rick Becker 

Mayor 

Town of Mineral Springs 
PO Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC 28108 
(704) 243-0505 x223 
(704) 843-5870 home 
(704) 243-1705 fax 
www.mineralspringsnc.com 

  

Gardner, Zachary L  

To:Mayor Rick Becker,Epperson, Sean M 

Cc:Vicky Brooks,Ghitea, Theo,Jean, Laura H 

Wed, Mar 13 at 10:03 AM 

Good morning, 



  

Thanks for reaching out! We will get new counts so we can update our modeling for the NC 

75 at Potter Rd intersection. This process typically takes 3-4 weeks for counts, and another 

week or so for the modeling. I will follow back up when I have this information. 

  

Thank you! 
Zach Gardner, PE 
Division 10 Traffic Engineer 
North Carolina Department of Transportation 
  
716 W. Main Street 
Albemarle, NC 28001 
  

 

Epperson, Sean M  

To:Mayor Rick Becker,Gardner, Zachary L 

Cc:Vicky Brooks,Ghitea, Theo 

Sat, Mar 30 at 12:27 PM 

Mayor Becker, 

The revised B/C for the Potter and Pleasant Grove proposed project is just over 
17.  This puts it in contention to be funded as anything over 15 is considered to 
be competitive.  Still can't guarantee anything though.  We will hear in a month or 
so if it got selected this cycle.   

Sean Epperson, PE 

Deputy Division Engineer 
NCDOT 

Division 10 

  

 

 

Mayor Rick Becker  

From:msncmayor@yahoo.com 

To:Gardner, Zachary L,Epperson, Sean M 

Cc:Vicky Brooks,Ghitea, Theo 

Mon, Apr 1 at 9:29 AM 



Sean, 
 
This is a great update even if we must wait a bit more for a final decision. Thank you for 
submitting this safety project for us! 
 
-Rick Becker 

Mayor 

Town of Mineral Springs 
PO Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC 28108 
(704) 243-0505 x223 
(704) 843-5870 home 
(704) 243-1705 fax 
www.mineralspringsnc.com 

  

Gardner, Zachary L  

To:Mayor Rick Becker,Epperson, Sean M 

Cc:Vicky Brooks,Ghitea, Theo,Jean, Laura H,Love, Brandon D 

Wed, Apr 24 at 3:24 PM 

Mayor Becker, 

  

I apologize for the slight delay, we were getting counts and doing analysis to understand 

what options we may have for this intersection, and what impact these actions would have 

on operations. Here’s where we landed: 

  

The typical signal phasing when there are no left turn lanes is to have one approach run 

“protected” lefts. This means one side stops while the other side lefts and through gets a 

green. A good example of this is over at NC75 at NC16 when traveling eastbound. In the 

snip below of that intersection, the 5-section signal head is allowing vehicles going 

eastbound to have a protected left. 

  

Looking at the NC75 volumes, the AM peak hour left turn volumes are higher in one 

direction, and the PM peak hour lefts are higher in the opposite direction. That’s volume 

split is somewhat unusual and is likely why previous analysis showed negligible benefit to 

adding one of those movements as protected lefts (it would help in one peak hour and hurt 

in the other). Here’s the good news: we’ve worked with our signal design section to propose 

a design that will run protected lefts in one direction the morning, and switch to run 

protected in the other direction in the evening. In other words, the WB direction will look like 

the snip below in the morning, and the EB direction will look like the snip below in the 

evening. This design will also be very flexible and if in the future development occurs that 



shifts the volume distribution, we can change the time of day or direction with just minor 

programming changes. 

  

We also reviewed the Potter Road approaches, but the northbound lefts were the higher 

volume. Unfortunately, if we design the intersection to run protected lefts for the 

northbound approach, it will increase the queues on the southbound back towards the 

railroad, which is a safety concern. Therefore, I recommend no changes to signal phasing 

on the Potter Road approaches to avoid increasing queues towards the track. 

  

We just sent this alternate phasing on NC75 to our signal design section. It takes 

approximately 90 days for the signal plans to be completed. Once complete, we will get 

materials ordered and schedule the installation. Traffic control on 2-lane 2-way roads is a 

challenge, so it will slow down our installation a bit. Overall, I’d anticipate this being 

designed and implemented within 4-6 months. 

  

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you! 

 

 
Zach Gardner, PE 
Division 10 Traffic Engineer 
North Carolina Department of Transportation 
716 W. Main Street 
Albemarle, NC 28001 
  

 



 

Mayor Rick Becker  

From:msncmayor@yahoo.com 

To:Epperson, Sean M,Gardner, Zachary L 

Cc:Vicky Brooks,Ghitea, Theo,Jean, Laura H,Love, Brandon D 

Thu, Apr 25 at 12:08 PM 

Zach and Sean, 
 
That is great news! While we'd love to be able to tackle the NB Potter Road backups in the 
afternoon, I understand the problem with SB traffic and the grade-level RR crossing. Certainly the 
improvements on NC-75 would be very much appreciated in any case. 
 
Sean, is the cost for this signal change still $10,000? I would like to put this on our Town Council 
agenda for May 9, 2024 for final approval. I think Council will be very pleased to get this news! 
 
Thank you very much, 

-Rick Becker 

Mayor 

Town of Mineral Springs 
PO Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC 28108 
(704) 243-0505 x223 
(704) 843-5870 home 
(704) 243-1705 fax 
www.mineralspringsnc.com 

  

Epperson, Sean M  

To:Mayor Rick Becker,Gardner, Zachary L 

Cc:Vicky Brooks,Ghitea, Theo,Jean, Laura H,Love, Brandon D 

Thu, Apr 25 at 12:09 PM 

Mayor, 
  
We are going to cover the costs of these improvements ourselves.  
  
Sean Epperson, PE 



Deputy Division Engineer 
NCDOT 
Division 10 
  
716 W. Main St 
Albemarle, NC 28001 
  

 

 

Mayor Rick Becker  

From:msncmayor@yahoo.com 

To:Gardner, Zachary L,Epperson, Sean M 

Cc:Vicky Brooks,Ghitea, Theo,Jean, Laura H,Love, Brandon D 

Thu, Apr 25 at 1:07 PM 

Sean, 
 
That is wonderful news! Thank you so much for making this happen. I will let Council know that 
the process is in the works, We are very grateful to NCDOT for this assistance. 
 
Thanks again, 

-Rick Becker 

Mayor 

Town of Mineral Springs 
PO Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC 28108 
(704) 243-0505 x223 
(704) 843-5870 home 
(704) 243-1705 fax 
www.mineralspringsnc.com 



Estimate #11960

4/30/2024

Prepared For:

Matt Rorie

signpro, inc

3125 Parks McCorkle Rd

Monroe, NC 28112

USA

Prepared By:

Town of Mineral Springs

Vicky Brooks

P.O. Box 600

Mineral Springs, NC 28108

USA

Description:

Town of Mineral Springs Pole Banners

Quantity Description

Each Total Taxable

Phone: 704.243.0505 Fax: 704.219.7048Phone: Fax:

E-Mail: msvickybooks@aol.com E-Mail:

Alt. Phone: ext. 221 Alt. Phone:

signprofx@gmail.com

14 24"w x 60"h (18oz) 2sided Digital Print Banner w/Pole Pockets

(Grommets)

130.00 $1,820.00

Sales Tax $122.85

$1,942.85

Total

$1,820.00

Subtotal

POLICY / INSTRUCTIONS / CARE

* DESIGN: Before any design work is done there is a non-refundable deposit for Design Time. ANY ORIGINAL ARTWORK

DESIGNED BY SIGNPRO  IS COPYRIGHTED (c). USE OF THIS ARTWORK BY ANY PARTY OTHER THAN SIGNPRO

FOR ANY PURPOSE IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT A SIGNED RELEASE. Note: Customer Submitted Artwork - must be print

and cut ready. File Types: (High Resolution JPEG & TIFF, PDF, Ai, EPS, CDR, PSD, etc. Vector Art: Must be Converted to

Curves or Outlines). Size, Material, Colors, etc. must be listed, (CMYK, RGB, Pantones, etc.), any Artwork that is not ready

will incur an Art & Set-up Charge. Signpro is not responsible for any errors or defects in customer supplied artwork, materials,

or products. Signpro is not responsible for any goods or products not manufactured by Signpro. *APPAREL: Turn Garment

Inside Out to Wash. Machine Wash Cold with Like Colors. Do Not Use Bleach or Harsh Detergent. Hang Dry or Use Lowest /

Cool Setting on Dryer. Do Not Use Hot Temperature to Dry. If Garment Needs to be Ironed, Omit Ironing the Transferred

Image. *All Cotton Shrinks, If Unsure Size Up! *WRAP/GRAPHICS: Maintenance:  Most vehicle wraps & graphics have an

expected life of 4-6 years; however there are also short-term & non-laminated graphics that have a lower durability

expectation. When cleaning your graphics it is recommended to use a soft cleaning agent with a sponge or microfiber towel.

It’s also recommended waiting for 2 weeks before washing to ensure that your graphics are properly cured. Hand wash with

soap and water using a soft non-abrasive sponge or microfiber towel is the best method for cleaning your wrap. No polishing,

waxing, or buffing is needed. Avoid high pressure washes because that spray can actually tear the vinyl or cause seams to

lift. The use of a rear defroster will cause no damage to your window wrap, be careful to never use an ice scraper. It is

important to avoid washing with harsh, highly caustic materials, these products literally destroy the vinyl. Think of a sheet of

plastic less than 4/1000 of an inch thick surviving multiple washes with harsh detergents. With all that your vehicle graphics

are exposed to from sunlight, pollen, bugs, engine exhaust and acid rain in some places along with everything else hitting

them at high speed, the of use of acidic or caustic washes shouldn't add to the stress. * LABOR: Any additional time incurred

with designing, fabricating and/or any other service will be billed at current hourly rate.  Signpro reserves the right to revise

this quote if a difference from the original specifications and/or additional change orders are needed. * DELIVERY: Delivery or

Shipping Charge Apply, FOB shipping point. Signpro is Not Responsible for Electricial, Sign Permits, Zoning, and/or

Ordinances. Signpro reserves the right to retrieve our signs from your property (OWNED OR LEASED) for any unpaid

balances. Unpaid balances will incur a monthly finance charge plus additional charges for collections, attorney's fees and

court cost. No Warranties Expressed or Implied. (4%) Processing Fee for Credit Card Purchase. Invoice terms overrides all

other terms. ALL SALES ARE FINAL.  NO RETURNS / NO EXCEPTIONS.

Terms:

Payment due on receipt of invoice or Net 10 Days (after 10 Days add 15% Finance Charge)

By my signature, I authorize work to begin and agree to pay the above amount in full according to the terms on this agreement.

Page 1 of 2

msvic
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item    #8

msvic
Typewritten Text

msvic
Typewritten Text

msvic
Typewritten Text

msvic
Typewritten Text



Estimate #11960

4/30/2024

Signed by Date Amt. Paid Today

Page 2 of 2


	050924_tca
	041124_tcmd
	240509_County_Tax_Report_March
	Finance_Report_2403_MSPDF
	050924 MEMO to tc nuisance ordinance
	240509_FY2024-25_Budget_Agenda_Item_MSPDF
	240509_CRTPO_WUMA_agenda_item
	240509_NCDOT_Intersections_Agenda_Item
	240502_Intersections_Memo.pdf (p.1)
	240509_Intersection_Improvement_Emails.pdf (p.2-8)

	Est.#11960 Mineral Springs



